

# United States Attorneys Bulletin



*Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys  
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.*

VOL. 26

APRIL 14, 1978

NO. 7\*

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

There was no issue No. 6.

①  
ZBl:sk

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
COMMENDATIONS	103
POINTS TO REMEMBER	
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY APPOINTMENT	105
UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS' MANUAL--BLUESHEET	105
JURIS	105
COORDINATION WITH STATE MEDICAID FRAUD UNITS	106
INTERCEPTION OF COMMUNICATIONS - ORAL COMMUNICATIONS	106
REFERRAL OF CASES TO FEDERAL MAGISTRATES	107
PHENCYCLIDINE [PCP] RE-CLASSIFIED AS A	
SCHEDULE II SUBSTANCE	109
UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS' MANUAL--TRANSMITTALS	113
CASENOTES	
Civil Division	
Freedom of Information Act	115
<u>Guy Diviaio v. Kelley, et al.</u>	
Freedom of Information Act	115
<u>Nix v. United States</u>	
Black Lung Benefits	115
<u>Paluso v. Califano</u>	
Default by the United States	116
<u>Poe v. Mathews</u>	
Freedom of Information Act	116
<u>Cervase v. Department of State</u>	
Recoupment of Benefits Fraudulently Obtained	117
<u>Clyde Jacquet, et al. v. Roy E. Westerfield</u>	
Federal Lien Priorities	117
<u>Willow Creek Lumber Co., Inc. v. Porter</u>	
<u>Plumbing and Heating, Inc. and United States</u>	
Justiciability - Interest of United States	
as Intervenor	118
<u>Gavin A. Ruotolo, etc. v. Gavin A.</u>	
<u>Ruotolo, et al.</u>	
Criminal Division	
Gun Control Act; rejection of enhanced sentence	
for armed bank robbery	119
<u>Simpson, et al. v. United States</u>	

	<u>Page</u>
Youth Corrections Act; authority of sentencing court to impose fine and require restitution <u>Durst et al. v. United States</u>	120
Grand Jury Witness; Physical Force Applied In Re Lawrence F. Maguire	120
Civil Rights Division	
Exams and Efficiency Rating Criterion for Promotion <u>United States v. City of Chicago</u>	121
Tests Used in Ranking Applicants for Employment <u>United States v. Frazer</u>	122
Student Assignment and Majority to Minority Transfer Provisions <u>Lee, et al. v. Dallas County Board of Education, et al.</u>	122
Title VI <u>United States v. El Camino Community College District</u>	123
Judicial Review of Attorney General's Administration of Section 5 of the Voting Rights Act <u>City of Rome, Georgia v. United States</u>	123
§§4 and 5 of the Voting Rights Act <u>United States v. Board of Commissioners of Sheffield, Alabama</u>	124
Indian Tribal Courts <u>Oliphant v. Suquamish Indian Tribes</u>	124
City of Philadelphia Police Department <u>United States v. City of Philadelphia, et al.</u>	125
Voter Registration Standards <u>United States v. State of Texas</u>	126
Prisons <u>Adams and United States v. Mathis</u>	126
Suspension of LEAA Funds <u>United States v. Commonwealth of Virginia et al.</u>	127

Page

Involuntary Servitude 128  
United States v. Shah et Shah

Right to Treatment for the Mentally Retarded 129  
Halderman and the United States v. Pennhurst

Felony Conspiracy Violation of 18 U.S.C. §241 129  
United States v. Ellis et al.

SELECTED CONGRESSIONAL AND LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES 131

APPENDIX: FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 137  
These pages should be placed on permanent file,  
by Rule, in each United States Attorney's  
office Library.

Citations for the slip opinions are available  
on FTS 739-3754.

APPENDIX: FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE 155  
These pages should be placed on permanent  
file, by Rule, in each United States  
Attorney's office Library.

Citations for the slip opinions are available  
on FTS 739-3754.

*CE*  
*h. Blank*

COMMENDATIONS

Assistant United States Attorney Shelley M. Stump, District of South Dakota, has been commended by John J. Daley, Jr., Regional Counsel, United States Postal Service, for her outstanding work in the case of Barber v. Hart, et. al.

Assistant United States Attorney D. Mark Ellison, Northern District of Texas, has been commended by James A. Abbott, Special Agent in Charge, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for his outstanding work in the successful prosecution of United States v. James Edward Underwood, in which the defendant was convicted of receiving stolen goods transported in interstate commerce.

Assistant United States Attorney Jim Ezer, Southern District of Texas, has been commended by Irvin C. Swank, Regional Director, Drug Enforcement Administration, for his highly professional work in the complex heroin investigation, Suzie DIAZ, et. al. in which thirty-one persons were indicted for the distribution of brown Mexican heroin in the greater Houston area.

Swank

POINTS TO REMEMBER

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY APPOINTMENTS

The following Presidentially-appointed United States Attorneys have entered on duty. The Executive Office staff takes this opportunity to extend its hearty welcome.

<u>DISTRICT</u>	<u>UNITED STATES ATTORNEY</u>	<u>ENTERED ON DUTY</u>
Ohio, N	James R. Williams	3/17/78
Ohio, S	James C. Cissell	4/3/78

(Executive Office)

\* \* \*

UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS' MANUAL--BLUESHEETS

No Bluesheets have been sent to press in accordance with 1-1.550 since the last issue of the Bulletin.

(Executive Office)

\* \* \*

JURIS

Some United States Attorneys Offices have experienced a busy signal when attempting to connect to the JURIS system. There are two possibilities for this condition. Either some intermediate point in the telephone network was busy or all the telecommunications ports at the Justice Data Center were busy. Our records indicate that never during the past month were all our computer telecommunications ports busy at the same time.

Please request your personnel, when in the future they experience a busy signal, to advise the User Assistance Staff (FTS-376-2556 or commercial 202-376-2556) so that the Staff can accumulate system performance data.

(Executive Office)

\* \* \*

## COORDINATION WITH STATE MEDICAID FRAUD UNITS

Section 17 of the Medicare and Medicaid Anti-Fraud and Abuse Amendments (P.L. 95-142) and amendments to 42 CFR Part 450 provide for Federal matching funds during fiscal years 1978 through 1980 for the establishment of State Medicaid Fraud Control Units to support the investigation and prosecution of fraud in State Medicaid programs. Existing State Medicaid agencies will no longer investigate such fraud but must refer all cases to, and cooperate fully with, the new Fraud Control Units.

A unit must be a separate and distinct entity from the existing Medicaid agency and be located either: within the Office of Attorney General (or other state entity having state-wide prosecutive authority); outside the Office of Attorney General provided there exists an effective working relationship with the Attorney General's office for the referral and prosecution; or if no statewide prosecutive authority exists, the unit may be located out of the Attorney General's Office provided there exists effective procedures for referring cases to the appropriate authorities.

As these units come into existence all United States Attorneys are encouraged to coordinate and cooperate with them. Along these lines, it is suggested that early contact be made with representatives of these units to establish a comprehensive prosecutive effort in the Medicaid area and to avoid duplication. As a result of this legislation, we can expect the state authorities to assume a large role in the prosecution of Medicaid fraud.

## INTERCEPTION OF COMMUNICATIONS - ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

In United States v. Burroughs, 564 F.2d 1111 (4th Cir. 1977), the Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit held that the interception of oral communications prohibition in 18 U.S.C. §2511(1)(a) requires proof of some "federal nexus." Consequently, United States Attorneys' offices in the Fourth Circuit must be prepared to charge and prove a "federal nexus" in interception of oral communications cases brought under that paragraph.

The Department of Justice believes that Burroughs was decided incorrectly. We believe that the legislative history clearly demonstrates that section 2511 has no implied exceptions. Consequently, except in the Fourth Circuit, we are seeking appropriate cases to litigate the scope of the 18 U.S.C. §2511 (1)(a) prohibition against interception of oral communications. Before such prosecution is initiated, we request that the General Crimes Section be notified at FTS 739-4512.

Criminal Division

## REFERRALS OF CASES TO FEDERAL MAGISTRATES

During the last few months there have been several informal inquiries from Assistant United States Attorneys concerning the Department of Justice policy with respect to referral of cases to Federal Magistrates. For your convenience, a copy of the revised Statement of Policy in 28 C.F.R. 50.11 as it appeared in 42 Federal Register 55470 (daily edition, Monday, October 17, 1977) is reproduced in this issue of the Bulletin.

The revised regulation substantially alters the Department's policy concerning referrals of both civil and criminal cases, and attorneys in charge of litigation on behalf of the United States are encouraged to accede to referrals to magistrates wherever to do so would be in the litigating interests of the United States. All relevant factors should be considered in determining whether to accede to a referral, and the policy statement contemplates that trial attorneys will exercise the same degree of judgment and flexibility in such matters which would apply in an action on behalf of a purely private client. When referral would be in the interests of the United States, the United States should accede. When, in the judgment of the attorney in charge of the matter for the Department, referral would prejudice those interests, the United States should not accede to referral.

This brief review may be helpful in advising on or answering future inquiries on the subject. Scott Taylor of the Office for Improvements in the Administration of Justice, is available to work directly with any persons having more specific questions. His phone number is 202-739-4609.

This material will be incorporated in the United States Attorneys' Manual within the near future.

(Executive Office)

\*

\*

\*

**§ 50.11 Designation of United States magistrates as special masters and referrals to magistrates.**

(a) United States magistrates are subordinate judicial officers of the district courts who act under the jurisdiction of those courts and subject to their direction and control. The Supreme Court, in the recent case of *Mathews v. Weber*, 423 U.S. 261 (1976), has ruled that a district court practice of referring all Social Security benefit cases to magistrates for hearing and preparation of a recommended decision is a proper exercise of the court's authority, and that a magistrate so acting does so in the capacity of magistrate, not as a special master under Rule 53(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, *id.*, at 273-275. As a consequence, such referrals are not subject to the "exceptional circumstances" test for appointment of special masters as interpreted in *LaBuy v. Howes Leather Co.*, 352 U.S. 249 (1957), decided 10 years before establishment of the magistracy.

(b) In Pub. L. 94-577, 90 Stat. 2729, the Congress adopted and endorsed this view of its original intent in the Federal Magistrates Act by amending section 636(b) of title 28, United States Code, to provide that a judge of the district court may designate a magistrate to hear and determine any pretrial matter pending before the court, except for eight named classes of case-dispositive motions, in which the magistrate may hear and recommend decision to the judge, 28 U.S.C. 636(b)(1) (A), (B). The same amendments also provide that a judge may designate a magistrate to serve as special master in any civil case, upon consent of the parties, without regard to the provisions of Rule 53(b), and that a magistrate may be assigned such additional duties as are not inconsistent with the Constitution and laws of the United States, 28 U.S.C. 636(b) (2), (3).

(c) In view of these actions of the Supreme Court and the Congress, it is clear that magistrates may be designated to act as special masters even though the "exceptional circumstances" contemplated by Rule 53(b) may be absent, and that magistrates acting under revised 636(b)(1) (A) and (B) to hear and determine or to hear and recommend decision on pretrial matters are not acting as special masters under the rule. It is the policy of the Department of Justice to encourage, in appropriate cases, the use of magistrates to assist the district courts in resolving litigation. In conformity with this policy, the legal divisions of the Department of Justice are encouraged to accede to a district court referral to a magistrate, or to consent to designation of a magistrate as special master, if the attorney in charge of the matter for the Department determines that such a referral or designation is in the interest of the United States with respect to the litigation involved. In making this determination, all relevant factors should be considered, including the complexity of the matter, the relief sought, the amount involved, the importance and nature of the issues

raised, and the likelihood that the referral to or designation of the magistrate will expedite resolution of the litigation.

Dated: October 5, 1977.

GRIFFIN B. BELL,  
Attorney General.

[FR Doc. 77-30191 Filed 10-14-77; 8:45 am]

**[ 4410-01 ]****Title 28—Judicial Administration****CHAPTER I—DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE**

[Order No. 751-77]

**PART 50—STATEMENTS OF POLICY****Referrals to Federal Magistrates**

AGENCY: Department of Justice.

ACTION: Statement of policy.

SUMMARY: The attached statement of policy revises policies of the Department of Justice concerning referral of cases by the United States district courts to magistrates of those courts. The earlier policy directed legal Divisions of the Department to object to such referrals whenever they concluded that a referral would not be an "exceptional circumstance" required for designation of a special master under Rule 53(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The revised policy encourages the legal divisions to accede to such referrals when to do so would be in the interest of the United States under the circumstances.

EFFECTIVE DATE: October 15, 1977.

**FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:**

Daniel J. Meador, Assistant Attorney General, Office for Improvements in the Administration of Justice, Department of Justice, 10th and Constitution Avenue NW., Washington, D.C. 20530, 733-3824.

By virtue of the authority vested in me by 28 U.S.C. 503, 509, 516, and 517 and by 5 U.S.C. § 50.11 of Part 50 of Chapter I of Title 28, Code of Federal Regulations, is hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows:

## PHENCYCLIDINE [PCP] RE-CLASSIFIED AS A SCHEDULE II SUBSTANCE

The edition of the Federal Register dated Wednesday, January 25, 1978 (43 FR 3359) contained a final order of the Administrator, Drug Enforcement Administration, transferring phencyclidine (PCP) from Schedule III to Schedule II of the Controlled Substances Act. By this action, which puts PCP into the same schedule as morphine, cocaine and methaqualone, the Administrator hopes that agents, prosecutors, and judges will attach new and heightened significance to criminal activities by individuals involved in illegal manufacture, distribution and sale of PCP, even though the statutory penalty for such activities remains the same.

With PCP as a Schedule II controlled substance, it is criminal activity:

- (1) as of February 25, 1978, to fail to distribute or dispense PCP with a written prescription - 21 U.S.C. 842(a)(1);
- (2) as of July 24, 1978, to distribute PCP without Schedule II labelling - 21 U.S.C. 842(a)(3);
- (3) as of February 24, 1978, to transfer PCP without DEA order forms - 21 U.S.C. 842(a)(1);
- (4) as of February 24, 1978, to refuse or fail to observe recordkeeping and inventory requirements for Schedule II controlled substances - 21 U.S.C. 842(a)(5);
- (5) as of February 24, 1978, to manufacture PCP in excess of manufacturing quota - 21 U.S.C. 842(b);
- (6) as of February 24, 1978, to manufacture or distribute PCP with the intent to import it into the United States, or knowing that it will thus occur - 21 U.S.C. §§ 959, 960.

Criminal liability for trafficking in PCP as a Schedule II controlled substance attaches on and after February 24, 1978. Up to such date, criminal liability for trafficking in PCP is as a Schedule III controlled substance.

Attached is the Federal Register announcement setting forth the final order placing PCP in Schedule II, with the new requirements for handling PCP, and the effective dates therefore, set out therein.

# federal register

Area Code 202

Phone 523-5240

P. 3359

[4410-01]

## CHAPTER II—DRUG ENFORCEMENT ADMINISTRATION, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

### PART 1308—SCHEDULES OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES

#### Placement of Phencyclidine in Schedules II

AGENCY: Drug Enforcement Administration.

ACTION: Final Rule.

**SUMMARY:** This rule is issued as a result of the Drug Enforcement Administration's request that the Assistant Secretary for Health, Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, provide DEA with a scientific and medical evaluation of phencyclidine regarding its transfer from Schedule III to Schedule II of the Act, the Assistant Secretary's transmittal of the requested evaluation and recommendation, DEA's review thereof, subsequent publication in the FEDERAL REGISTER (42 FR 63647, Dec. 19, 1977) of a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking to transfer phencyclidine to Schedule II, and receipt and review by DEA of comments submitted in response to the published Notice. This rule requires that the manufacture, distribution, dispensing, importation, exportation of phencyclidine be subject to controls for Schedule II controlled substances.

**EFFECTIVE DATE OF SCHEDULE II CONTROL:** February 24, 1978, except as otherwise provided in Supplementary Information section of this order.

#### FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Howard McClain, Jr., Chief, Regulatory Control Division, Drug Enforcement Administration, telephone 202-633-1366.

**SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:** A Notice was published in the FEDERAL REGISTER on Monday, December 19, 1977 (42 FR 63647-48) proposing that phencyclidine be transferred from Schedule III to Schedule II of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970 (21 U.S.C. 801-965), and that 21 Code of Federal Regulations, §§ 1308.12 and 1308.13 (Schedules II and III, respectively) be amended accordingly. All interested persons were given until January 18, 1978 to submit their comments or objections in writing regarding this proposal.

Two comments were received in response to the proposal from the State of Rhode Island Department of Health, Division of Drug Control and from the North Carolina State Drug Commission, which supported the proposed rescheduling of phencyclidine from Schedule III to Schedule II.

No further comments nor objections were received, nor were there any requests for a hearing, and in view thereof, and based upon the investigations and review of the Drug Enforcement Administration and upon the scientific and medical evaluation and recommendation of the Assistant Secretary for Health in behalf of the Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare, received pursuant to section 201(a) and 201(b) of the Act (21 U.S.C. 811(a) and 811(b)), the Administrator of the Drug Enforcement Administration finds that:

1. Phencyclidine has a high potential for abuse;
2. Phencyclidine has a currently accepted medical use in veterinary treatment in the United States; and
3. Abuse of phencyclidine may lead to severe psychological dependence.

Therefore, under the authority vested in him by the Act and by regulations of the Department of Justice, the Administrator of the Drug Enforcement Administration hereby orders that §§ 1308.12(e) and 1308.13(c) of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) be amended to read as follows:

#### § 1308.12 Schedule II.

(e) *Depressants.* Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances having a depressant effect on the central nervous system, including its salts, isomers, and salts of isomers whenever the existence of such salts, isomers, and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation:

(1) Amobarbital .....	2125
(2) Methaqualone .....	2565
(3) Pentobarbital .....	2270
(4) Phencyclidine .....	7471
(5) Secobarbital .....	2415

#### § 1308.13 Schedule III.

(c) *Depressants.* Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances having a depressant effect on the central nervous system:

(1) Any compound, mixture or preparation containing:

(i) Amobarbital .....	2125
(ii) Secobarbital .....	2315
(iii) Pentobarbital .....	2270

or any salt thereof and one or more other active medicinal ingredients which are not listed in any schedule.

(2) Any suppository dosage form containing:

(i) Amobarbital .....	2125
(ii) Secobarbital .....	2315
(iii) Pentobarbital .....	2270

or any salt of any of these drugs and approved by the Food and Drug Administration for marketing only as a suppository.

(3) Any substance which contains any quantity of a derivative of barbituric acid or any salt thereof .....	2100
(4) Chlorhexadol .....	2519
(5) Gluthethimide .....	2550
(6) Lysergic acid .....	7300
(7) Lysergic acid amide .....	7310
(8) Methyprylon .....	2575
(9) Sulfondiethylmethane .....	2600
(10) Sulfonethylmethane .....	2605
(11) Sulfonmethane .....	2610

#### OTHER EFFECTIVE DATES

1. *Registration.* Any person who manufactures, distributes, dispenses, imports or exports phencyclidine or who proposes to engage in such activities, shall submit an application for registration to conduct such activities in accordance with Parts 1301 and 1311 of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations on or before April 25, 1978.

2. *Security.* Phencyclidine must be manufactured, distributed, and stored in accordance with §§ 1301.71, 1301.72 (a), (c), and (d), 1301.73, 1301.74 (a)-(f), 1301.75(b)(c) and 1301.76 of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations on or before July 24, 1978. From now

14

until the effective date of this provision, it is expected that manufacturers and distributors of phencyclidine will initiate whatever preparations as may be necessary, including undertaking handling and engineering studies and construction programs, in order to provide adequate security for phencyclidine in accordance with DEA regulations so that substantial compliance with this provision can be met by July 24, 1978. In the event that this imposes special hardships, the Drug Enforcement Administration will entertain any justified requests for extensions of time.

3. *Labeling and packaging.* All labels on commercial containers of, and all labeling of phencyclidine packaged after July 24, 1978, shall comply with the requirements of §§ 1302.03-1302.05 and 1302.08 of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations. In the event this effective date imposes special hardships on any manufacturer, as defined in section 102(14) of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 802(14)), the Drug Enforcement Administration will entertain any justified requests for an extension of time.

4. *Inventory.* Every registrant required to keep records who possess any quantity of phencyclidine shall take an inventory pursuant to §§ 1304.11-1304.19 of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations, of all stocks of such substance on hand on February 24, 1978.

5. *Records.* All registrants required to keep records pursuant to §§ 1304.21-1304.27 of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations shall maintain such records on phencyclidine commencing on the date on which the inventory of such substance is taken.

6. *Order Forms.* The order form requirements of §§ 1305.01-1305.16 of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations shall be in effect on the date which the initial inventory of this Schedule II controlled substance is taken, February 24, 1978.

7. *Prescriptions.* All prescriptions for products containing phencyclidine shall comply with §§ 1306.01-1306.06 and §§ 1306.11-1306.15 of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations, beginning February 24, 1978. All prescriptions for products containing such substances issued before February 24, 1978, if authorized for refilling, shall not be refilled on or after February 24, 1978.

8. *Importation and exportation.* All importation and exportation of phencyclidine shall, on or after April 25, 1978, be required to be in compliance with Part 1312 of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

9. *Criminal liability.* The Administrator, Drug Enforcement Administration, hereby orders that any activity with respect to phencyclidine as a Schedule II controlled substance not

authorized by, or in violation of, the Controlled Substances Act or the Controlled Substances Import and Export Act, conducted after February 24, 1978, shall be unlawful, except that any person who is not now registered to handle phencyclidine as a Schedule II controlled substance but who is entitled to registration under such Acts may continue to conduct normal business or professional practice with phencyclidine between the date on which this order is published and the date on which he obtains or is denied registration: *Provided*, That application for such registration is submitted on or before April 25, 1978.

10. *Other.* In all other respects, this order is effective February 24, 1978.

Dated: January 23, 1978.

PETER B. BENSINGER,  
*Administrator,*

*Drug Enforcement Administration.*

[FR Doc. 78-2239 Filed 1-24-78; 8:45 am]

## UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS' MANUAL--TRANSMITTALS

The following United States Attorneys' Manual Transmittals have been issued to date in accordance with USAM 1-1.500. This monthly listing may be removed from the Bulletin and used as a check list to assure that your Manual is up to date.

Transmittal Affecting Title	Transmittal No. / Date Mo/Day/Yr	Date of Text	Contents	
1	1	8/20/76	8/31/76	Ch. 1,2&3
	2	9/3/76	9/15/76	Ch.5
	3	9/14/76	9/24/76	Ch.8
	4	9/16/76	10/1/76	Ch.4
	5	2/4/77	1/10/77	Ch.6,10&12
	6	3/10/77	1/14/77	Ch.11
	7	6/24/77	6/15/77	Ch.13
	8	1/18/78	2/1/78	Ch.14
2	1	6/25/76	7/4/76	Ch. 1 to 4
	2	8/11/76	7/4/76	Index
3	1	7/23/76	7/30/76	Ch.1 to 7
	2	11/19/76	7/30/76	Index
4	1	1/3/77	1/3/77	Ch.3 to 15
	2	1/21/77	1/3/77	Ch.1 & 2
	3	3/15/77	1/3/77	Index
	4	11/28/77	11/1/77	Revisions to Ch. 1-6, 11-15. Index
5	1	2/4/77	1/11/77	Ch.1 to 9
	2	3/17/77	1/11/77	Ch.10 to 12
	3	6/22/77	4/5/77	Revisions to Ch. 1 - 8

6	1	3/31/77	1/19/77	Ch.1 to 6
	2	4/26/77	1/19/77	Index
7	1	11/18/76	11/22/76	Ch.1 to 6
	2	3/16/77	11/22/76	Index
8	1	1/4/77	1/7/77	Ch.4 & 5
	2	1/21/77	9/30/77	Ch.1 to 3
	3	5/13/77	1/7/77	Index
	4	6/21/77	9/30/76	Ch.3 (pp 3-6)
	5	2/9/78	1/31/78	Revisions to Ch. 2
9	1	1/12/77	1/10/77	Ch.4,11,17,18, 34,37,38
	2	1/15/77	1/10/77	Ch.7,100,122
	3	1/18/77	1/17/77	Ch.12,14,16, 40,41,42,43
	4	1/31/77	1/17/77	Ch. 130 to 139
	5	2/2/77	1/10/77	Ch.1,2,8,10,15, 101,102,104, 120,121
	6	3/16/77	1/17/77	Ch.20,60,61,63, 64,65,66,69,70, 71,72,73,75,77, 78,85,90,110
	7	9/8/77	8/1/77	Ch. 4 (pp 81-129) Ch. 9, 39
	8	10/17/77	10/1/77	Revisions to Ch. 1
*9	4/4/78	3/18/78	Index to Title 9	

\*Transmittals to be distributed to Manual Holders soon.

(Executive Office)

VOL. 26

APRIL 14, 1978

NO. 7

## CIVIL DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General Barbara Allen Babcock

Guy Diviaio v. Kelley, et al., No. 76-1955 (10th Cir., January 19, 1978) DJ 145-12-2411

## Freedom of Information Act

In this FOIA case involving Exemption 1, the Tenth Circuit held that the CIA is not compelled to reveal, pursuant to a "discovery" request, whether it ever photographed the requestor and if so whether such photographs were disseminated outside the Agency. The Court found such "answers to interrogatories" to be outside the scope and reach of the FOIA. The Court also held that the district court must give substantial weight to an agency's affidavit and that it is not required to conduct an in camera inspection of documents.

Attorney: Mark N. Mutterperl (Civil Division)  
FTS 739-3178

Nix v. United States, No. 76-1898 (4th Cir., February 28, 1978)  
DJ 145-12-2388

## Freedom of Information Act

The plaintiff in this FOI Act suit sought information from the FBI concerning its investigation into an alleged prison beating of the plaintiff by prison guards. The Fourth Circuit, applying a balancing test, held that witness interviews, letters from other inmates, and reports from non-federal law enforcement sources were exempt from disclosure by Exemption 7(D), which protects investigatory records to the extent that confidential sources or confidential information would be disclosed. It held further that the names of FBI agents and an AUSA were protected by Exemption 7(C) (invasion of personal privacy). The court also concluded that under the circumstances the plaintiff was not entitled to an award of attorney's fees.

Attorney: Thomas F. Wilson (Civil Division)  
FTS 739-3395

Paluso v. Califano, No. 76-1464 (10th Cir., March 7, 1978) DJ 178-77-7

## Black Lung Benefits

In its original decision in this case, the Tenth Circuit ruled that any Black Lung Benefits Act claimant who filed an administrative claim with HEW before the Act's July 1, 1973 cut-off date is eligible for Federal benefits. This decision

conflicted with HEW's position, previously adopted by the Fourth, Fifth, Sixth and Eighth Circuits, that Federal benefits are only payable where disability commences before the cut-off date. The Tenth Circuit has just vacated its earlier decision and adopted HEW's interpretation of the Act. In reaching the merits, the court also accepted our argument that the district court's order to remand the action to HEW for additional proceedings was final in a practical sense and thus appealable under the Cohen v. Beneficial Loan Corp. doctrine.

Attorney: Mark H. Gallant (Civil Division)  
FTS 739-2689

Poe v. Mathews, No. 76-1908 (6th Cir., February 27, 1978) DJ  
137-58-1128

#### Default by the United States

After the Secretary of HEW failed to file the administrative transcript in this Social Security Act disability case in a timely manner, the district court entered a default judgment, ordering the Secretary to pay benefits. On our appeal, the Sixth Circuit has held that the default judgment violated both Rule 55(e), Fed. R. Civ. P., and 42 U.S.C. § 405(g). The Court ruled that a district court is "without authority to affirm, modify or reverse a decision of the Secretary . . . without considering the transcript of the record."

Attorney: Mark H. Gallant (Civil Division)  
FTS 739-2689

Cervase v. Department of State, No. 77-1627 (C.A. 3, February 15, 1978) DJ 145-2-229

#### Freedom of Information Act

In 1976, the U.S. Embassy in Moscow sent a private protest note to the Soviet Government, objecting to harrassment of an American diplomat. The press was told that a protest had been sent, but it was not given the text of the note. Plaintiff then asked for the text under the Freedom of Information Act. The State Department concluded that the note should have been classified, so marked it, and thus denied the FOIA request. The district court upheld the State Department and, in a one line order, the Third Circuit has now affirmed.

Attorney: Frank A. Rosenfeld (Civil Division)  
FTS 739-3969

Clyde Jacquet, et al. v. Roy E. Westerfield, et al., No. 75-3828 (5th Cir., March 24, 1978) DJ 145-16-634

#### Recoupment of Benefits Fraudulently Obtained

The Fifth Circuit has affirmed a district court decision holding that aid to families with dependent children may be reduced for a period of time to permit recoupment of excess benefits fraudulently obtained. The court of appeals held that such recoupment does not violate any other provision of the Social Security Act and that recoupment regulations are not eligibility requirements. The court of appeals also sustained Department of Agriculture Regulations permitting states to disqualify for a period of time those who have fraudulently obtained excess food stamps. The court of appeals held that disqualification for a period sufficient to recoup the fraudulently obtained amounts does not violate the Food Stamp Act and further that such disqualification is permissible even if the time of disqualification exceeds the time necessary to recoup so long as each case is considered on its own merits and there is a valid administrative purpose being served. The court based its rulings on the Government's common-law right to recoup money erroneously paid, and held that Congressional rejection of a recoupment provision in a bill in which the recoupment provision was but one of many provisions did not negate the Government's common-law rights.

Attorney: Allen H. Sachsel (Civil Division)  
FTS 739-3380

Willow Creek Lumber Co., Inc. v. Porter County Plumbing & Heating, Inc. and United States of America, Nos. 77-1536 and 77-1537 (C.A. 7, February 16, 1978) DJ 130-26-1257

#### Federal Lien Priorities

This was an interlocutory appeal under 28 U.S.C. 1292(b) to determine the relative priorities of a HUD-insured mortgage and subsequent mechanic's liens which would be entitled to priority under state law. The Seventh Circuit, following the majority rule, held that, under federal law, in order for a non-federal lien to be superior, it must have attached to the property in question and become choate before the federal lien. Since, as is normally the case, mechanic's liens are not choate until they are reduced to judgment, the Government mortgage was held to be superior. The Fifth and the Ninth Circuits do not follow this majority rule, and in the Fifth Circuit case, SBA v. Kimbell Foods, the Solicitor General, on March 24, 1978, filed a petition for a writ of certiorari.

Attorney: Thomas G. Wilson (Civil Division)  
FTS 739-3395

(21)

Gavin A. Ruotolo, etc. v. Gavin A. Ruotolo, et al., No. 77-1445 (1st Cir., March 22, 1978) DJ 77-34-194

Justiciability - Interest of United States as Intervenor

The First Circuit has held that the United States may not continue litigation in which it has intervened when the private parties to the controversy have settled their dispute. In this case, a private party in a bankruptcy proceeding moved that counsel be disqualified, contending that his participation violated 11 U.S.C. 67(b), which prohibits referees from engaging as counsel or attorney in bankruptcy proceedings. The United States moved to intervene because of its interest in the Bankruptcy Act. Before the district court rendered its decision, the private party who had objected, withdrew its objection. The district court then concluded that the attorney in question could act as counsel. The United States appealed the district court's decision. The court of appeals vacated the decision below, holding that there was no longer a justiciable issue and that regardless of the interest of the United States on obtaining a ruling on the question the district court had decided, it may not continue the litigation, because the Government had no interest in the fees and other matters involved.

Attorney: Freddi Lipstein (Civil Division)  
FTS 739-5140

## CRIMINAL DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General Benjamin R. Civiletti

Simpson, et al. v. United States, 46 U.S.L.W. 4159  
(No. 76-5761, February 28, 1978)

Gun Control Act; rejection of enhanced  
sentence for armed bank robbery.

In Simpson v. United States, the Supreme Court held that petitioners, convicted of two separate armed bank robberies in violation of 18 U.S.C. 2113(a) and (d) and of using firearms to commit the robberies in violation of 18 U.S.C. 924(c), could not be sentenced to consecutive terms of imprisonment under the armed robbery and firearms counts. The Court's decision was founded upon its perception of congressional intent. Although satisfied that §§2113(d) and 924(c) created distinct offenses, the Court held that the legislative history of §924(c), particularly the sponsor's explanation during House debate of the provision's scope, compelled its conclusion that Congress had not intended to authorize additional punishment under §924(c) for commission of a bank robbery with a firearm which was already subject to enhanced penalties under §2113(d). Conceding that the legislative history of §924(c) was "sparse," Justice Brennan, writing for the majority, nevertheless explained that whatever ambiguity might exist in the legislative history concerning the ambit of the criminal statute must be resolved in favor of lenity. The Court found further support for its construction of §924(c) in a "corollary" of the rule of lenity which would give precedence to the more specific penalty provisions of §2113(d) even though the general provisions of 924(c), which admittedly speak to the same concern for the use of firearms in the commission of felonies, were enacted later.

Justice Rehnquist dissented. He found that the plain language of §924(c), which provides for enhanced punishment for anyone who "uses a firearm to commit any felony", read in light of the circumstances of political assassination with firearms which surrounded the statute's enactment, clearly revealed Congress's intent to enhance the penalty already available for armed felons under §2113(d).

Attorney: John J. Klein (Criminal Division)  
739-3692

Durst et al. v. United States, \_\_\_\_\_ U.S. \_\_\_\_\_, (No. 76-5935,  
February 22, 1978)

Youth Corrections Act; authority of sentencing  
court to impose fine and require restitution

The Supreme Court held in Durst that a youth offender placed on probation pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 5010(a) may be required to make restitution and to pay a fine if the penalty provisions of the substantive offense for which he was convicted provide for a fine. While noting that the language of §5010(a) neither grants nor withholds the authority to impose fines or order restitution, the Court held that §5023(a) made the general probation statute (18 U.S.C. 3651)--which permits fines and a requirement of restitution as a condition of probation --applicable to youth offender sentences. The Court also noted that §5010(b) and (c) make youth offender commitment an alternative to "the penalty of imprisonment otherwise provided by law," and that the words "of imprisonment" were not included in the legislation as originally submitted to Congress. It found from the legislative history that the words were added for the specific purpose of permitting youth offenders sentenced under §5010(b) and (c) to be fined, and concluded that Congress therefore intended to permit fines to be imposed as a condition of probation under §5010(a).

Marshall Tamor Golding (Criminal Division)  
739-4501

In Re Lawrence F. Maguire, \_\_\_\_\_ F.2d \_\_\_\_\_, No. 77-1496  
(1st Cir., February 22, 1978)

Grand Jury Witness; Physical Force Applied.

The First Circuit, in a significant opinion, held that a district court can issue an order permitting Federal agents to employ whatever physical force is necessary to make a reluctant witness appear in a lineup and submit to fingerprinting as requested by a grand jury. The Circuit Court believed that the normally used weapon of contempt is ineffective in a situation like this where the defiant witness is already confined under a long jail term. The court concluded that since the grand jury was empowered to require a suspect to appear in a lineup and have his fingerprints taken, and such a "valid constitutional order" was issued, "[t]he only answer is the use of such reasonable force as may be necessary." This choice is being made by the witness, not by the court.

Attorney: Robert B. Collings (Criminal Division)  
FTS 833-3258

29



United States v. Frazer, F. Supp. \_\_\_\_\_, CA No. 2709-N  
(M.D. Ala. February 21, 1978) DJ 170-2-20

#### Tests Used in Ranking Applicants for Employment

In United States v. Frazer, Judge Samuel Pointer held that the State of Alabama could use tests for ranking applicants for employment with the state if those tests had been provisionally validated in accordance with Section J(h) of the Federal Executive Agency Guidelines. The United States had argued that these tests should not be permitted to be used on a provisional basis until an adverse impact analysis had been done. Under the Court's order the State will be required to validate the tests by criterion-related validity studies while the tests are being employed on a provisional basis.

Attorney: Gerald Hartman (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-4085

Lee, et al v. Dallas County Board of Education, et al,  
F. Supp. \_\_\_\_\_, CA No. 5945-70-H (S.D. Ala. February 23,  
1978) DJ 169-3-4

#### Student Assignment and Majority to Minority Transfer Provisions

On February 23, 1978 the District Court issued its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and entered Judgment in Lee, et al. v. Dallas County Board of Education, et al. The Court held that the defendants had failed to enforce the student assignment provisions of the 1970 desegregation order and were negligent in permitting students to violate those provisions. The Court found that the defendants had permitted the school transportation system to be utilized by persons seeking to violate the geographical attendance zones. The Court also found that the defendants had failed to make known the majority to minority transfer provisions of the desegregation plan and had failed to comply with the requirements of Singleton in assignment of faculty and staff. The Court dismissed on the merits that portion of the United States' enforcement motion which alleged that there was an impermissible disparity in the facilities provided by the school system. Defendants were ordered to remedy the zone violations and transportation problems by March 3, 1978, and to remedy the other violations by the 1978-79 school year.

Attorney: Michael Wise (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-3844

United States v. El Camino Community College District,  
F. Supp., CA No. 77-4617-RMT (C.D. California  
 February 24, 1978) DJ 169-12C-28

Title VI

On February 24, 1978 the District Court ruled from the bench in United States v. El Camino Community College District, denying defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment and granting the United States' Motion for a Permanent Injunction. This case, handled by HEW attorney Louie Stewart under designation as special attorney for the Department of Justice, was brought to secure records which the defendant had refused to give to HEW in a Title VI investigation. The defendant argued unsuccessfully that HEW was required during the investigation (which was based on a complaint of discrimination by the college against Mexican-American students and teachers) to identify the specific federal program in which discrimination was alleged to exist.

Attorney: Alexander Ross (Civil Rights Division)  
 FTS 739-4092

City of Rome, Georgia v. United States, F. Supp.  
 CA No. 77-0797 (D.D.C. February 22, 1978) DJ 169-19-35

Judicial Review of Attorney General's  
 Administration of Section 5 of the Voting  
 Rights Act

On February 22, 1978 the three judge district court (Richey, McGowan, and Gasch) entered an order granting the United States' motion to dismiss a portion of plaintiffs' complaint dealing with the unconstitutionality of the Attorney General's actions in the Section 5 review of a submission by the city. The court held that the logic of Morris v. Gressette and Harris v. Bell should be extended to cover the situation in which the Attorney General interposed an objection and on that basis stated that judicial review of the Attorney General's actions in review of Rome's submission is precluded.

Attorney: Carmen Jones (Civil Rights Division)  
 FTS 739-5128

United States v. Board of Commissioners of Sheffield, Alabama,  
No. 76-1662 (March 6, 1978) DJ 166-1-45

§§4 and 5 of the Voting Rights Act

On March 6, 1978 the Supreme Court decided United States v. Board of Commissioners of Sheffield, Alabama, and held, as the United States had urged, that when a state is covered by Section 4 of the Voting Rights Act, all political units, including cities, within that state must comply with the pre-clearance procedures of Section 5 whether or not they register voters. The Court also held that when the Attorney General did not object to a referendum, he did not thereby waive his right to object to the change approved by the voters in that referendum.

The majority opinion was written by Justice Brennan, Justices Blackmun and Powell wrote concurring opinions, and Justice Stevens wrote a dissenting opinion in which the Chief Justice and Justice Rehnquist joined.

Attorney: Judy Wolf (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-4126

Oliphant v. Suquamish Indian Tribe, No. 76-5729 (March 6,  
1978) DJ 180-82-2

Indian Tribal Courts

On March 5, 1978 the Supreme Court issued its decision (6-2) in Oliphant v. Suquamish Indian Tribe, holding that Indian tribal courts do not have the power to try non-Indians for misdemeanors committed on a reservation. Mr. Justice Rehnquist, speaking for the Court, said that Congress, the Executive Branch, and the lower courts had always assumed that tribes had no such "inherent" power because it is incompatible with their status as conquered peoples subject to the sovereignty of the United States.

Attorney: Miriam Eisenstein (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-4126

United States v. City of Philadelphia, et al., Nos. 77-1707, 77-1708, 77-1709, 77-1710, 77-1711 and 77-2140 and 77-2141, (3rd Cir. February 27, 1978)

City of Philadelphia Police Department

On February 27, 1978, the Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit issued its decision in United States v. City of Philadelphia, et al., a case involving seven appeals from interlocutory orders entered by the district court. Four of the appeals (two by the City and two by the Fraternal Order of Police) were from two orders of the district court entered in April and July 1977, respectively, providing for a 20% interim hiring goal for women for the job of police officer in the City of Philadelphia Police Department. Two of the appeals, both of which were filed by the City, were from orders of the district court concerning transfer and assignment opportunities to be provided to incumbent police women, who, pursuant to a prior consent order, were offered the opportunity to transfer from their jobs as policewomen to police officer jobs. The last appeal was filed by the United States from the district court's order holding lawful the City's discharge of a woman police officer solely on the grounds that she was 10-12 weeks pregnant and despite uncontested evidence that the officer was adequately performing her duties at the time of her discharge.

The Court upheld the district court's orders providing for interim hiring relief for women for the job of police officer. The Court also affirmed the lower court's orders with respect to the transfer and assignment opportunities to be provided incumbent female officers.

The Court reversed the lower court's holding that the City's discharge of the pregnant police officer solely on the basis of her pregnancy was lawful. The Court of Appeals held that "Cleveland Board of Education v. LaFleur, 414 U.S. 632 (1974) and Turner v. Department of Employment Security of Utah, 423 U.S. 44 (1975) establish that to apply a stereotyped presumption that a pregnant person is unable to work and to deny a person the opportunity to prove otherwise, violates the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment."

Attorney: John Gadzichowski (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-4134

United States v. State of Texas, F.Supp. \_\_\_\_\_, CA No. 76-H-1681 (S.D. Tex. March 3, 1978) DJ 166-74-24

#### Voter Registration Standards

On March 3, 1978, the three-judge court in United States v. State of Texas (Waller County) entered an injunction requiring that the Tax Assessor of Waller County apply the same voter registration standards to students residing in dormitories at the virtually all-black Prairie View A&M University as are applied to other persons, both students and nonstudents, in Texas. The five-page injunction contains detailed criteria to assure that the Prairie View students, who were previously denied the right to vote in the county, will be allowed to register. In a memorandum opinion issued on February 16, 1978 the court held that the actions of the defendants in not permitting the students to vote constituted a violation of the Twenty-Sixth Amendment.

It is anticipated that 1,000 to 1,500 students will register to vote prior to the May 6, 1978 county and statewide elections in Waller County.

Attorney: John MacCoon (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-2188

Adams and United States v. Mathis, F.Supp. \_\_\_\_\_, CA No. 74--70-S (M.D. Ala. February 28, 1978) DJ 168-2-25

#### Prisons

On February 28, 1978 Chief Judge Frank M. Johnson, Jr. issued his Memorandum Opinion and Order in Adams and United States v. Mathis. The Court ruled that the United States had standing to intervene in the suit based upon its duty to enforce criminal civil rights statutes. The Court held that officials of the State of Alabama have a constitutional duty to supervise "the acts of its agents who are authorized by state law to operate a jail in one of its political subdivisions." Alabama correctional, health, and fire safety officials were ordered to monitor jail conditions, to promulgate detailed rules and regulations, to enforce those regulations, and to provide direct assistance to the jail operation.

Attorney: Shawn Moore (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-5316  
Stephen Whinston (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-5303

United States v. Commonwealth of Virginia, et al., F. Supp. \_\_\_\_\_, CA No. 76-0623-R (E.D. Va., March 7, 1978) DJ 171-J3-13

### Suspension of LEAA Funds

On March 7, 1978 District Judge D. Dortch Warriner denied a preliminary injunction that would have prevented a suspension of LEAA funds flowing to the Virginia State Police in United States v. Commonwealth of Virginia, et al.

This Order reversed a ruling the Court had entered on February 4, 1977, granting the state police a preliminary injunction under the provisions of 42 U.S.C. 3766(c)(2)(E) (providing for suspension of LEAA funds 45 days after the Attorney General files suit alleging a pattern and practice of discrimination). The Department's appeal to the Fourth Circuit from this decision was argued January 9, 1978, and decided by the Fourth Circuit on February 9, 1978.

The Fourth Circuit, in reversing and remanding the Order, stated that the district court had not complied with Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 52(a) and 65(d) in its oral opinion and subsequent order in that it had not made clear "what law it was applying, much less the conclusions of law it made from an application of the facts." The panel also cited Blackwelder Furniture Co. v. Seilig Manufacturing Co., 550 F.2d 189 (4th Cir. 1977) as providing the appropriate standard to be applied in granting preliminary injunctions.

Following this reversal, defendants filed a Motion for Preliminary Injunction on February 28, 1978, which resulted in the March 7 hearing. Following argument, the Court again ruled from the bench. It first noted that under Blackwelder, the first requirement was to determine if there was irreparable harm, for if there was no such harm, no injunction would issue and additional analysis was unnecessary. It found that the irreparable harm to the people of Virginia was clear, in that suspension of LEAA funds would obviously result in a less efficient state police department. However, such harm would always be the result of a suspension providing the funds were being expended for a proper purpose. If Blackwelder alone were applied, funds would never be suspended. Yet, the intent of the statute was clear: fund suspension was almost automatic, unless a particular reason exists. Thus, the harm that results must have been in the contemplation of Congress, which nevertheless passed the statute. The Court finds that the legislation is clear in its intent and the

Court will give it the force and effect the Congress intended.

Attorney: Sidney Bixler (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-4753  
Daniel Searing (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-4752  
William White (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-4749

United States v. Shah et Shah, No. 76-473-CR-WHM (S.D. Fla.  
March 2, 1978) DJ 50-18-141

#### Involuntary Servitude

On March 2, 1978 defendant Syed Shah pleaded guilty to one count of violation of 18 U.S.C. §1584, involuntary servitude. On the same day, defendant Ishrat Shah pleaded guilty to substituted information changing, a violation of 18 U.S.C. §1325, concealing a material fact to an immigration officer.

The facts upon which these counts were based were as follows: In July, 1974, in Sierre Leon, the defendants entered a contract to pay a sum of money to the mother of an eleven year old girl, Rose Iftony. This girl was to accompany the Shahs to the United States and be educated there. In exchange, she was to help with the housework and occasionally babysit for the Shah's five year old son.

The Shahs and Rose arrived in Miami, Florida on August 12, 1974. Rose entered the United States on a visitor's visa good for only 60 days. For the next 16 months the Shahs held Rose in involuntary servitude. She was forced to work long hours at difficult and repetitious chores. She was forced to sleep on the floor; she was fed little else but a cheap grade of rice and a few vegetables. She was beaten and told not to run away. When she finally was placed in public school in December, 1975, her teachers noticed her emaciated condition, and she confided in them regarding her home conditions. The matter was brought to the attention of Florida State officials and Rose was taken from the Shah home and placed in foster care.

Attorney: Elaine Afable (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-2185  
John Conroy (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-4071

(92)

Halderman and the United States v. Pennhurst, F.Supp. \_\_\_\_,  
CA No. 74-1345 (E.D. Pa., March 17, 1978) DJ 144-62-1085

### Right to Treatment for the Mentally Retarded

On March 17, 1978 the District Court issued its order in Halderman and the U.S. v. Pennhurst, a "right to treatment" case seeking to vindicate the federal constitutional and statutory rights of the mentally retarded residents of Pennhurst State School and Hospital, Spring City, Pennsylvania.

The order directs defendants to replace the institution with appropriate community-based living arrangements and services for each Pennhurst resident and announces the court's intention to appoint a Master to draw a plan to accomplish this end. The court also enjoined future admissions to Pennhurst, abuse, chemical restraints, misuse of physical restraints and seclusion, lack of medical care and health related services; and ordered annual evaluations, individualized treatment plans and redirection of all activities within the institution to support community placement for each resident.

This is the first time that a court has directed that mentally retarded persons be provided education and training in the community. The order is based upon the constitutional right to receive habilitative care and treatment in the alternative least restrictive of individual liberty and recognizes the impossibility of providing such care in large, antiquated, separate facilities isolated from the community at large.

Attorney: Arthur Peabody (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-5305

United States v. Ellis, et al., No. CR77-428 (E.D. Pa., March 22, 1978) DJ 144-62-1266

### Felony Conspiracy Violation of 18 U.S.C. §241

On March 22, 1978 a federal jury convicted six Philadelphia police officers of a felony conspiracy violation of 18 U.S.C. §241 in United States v. Ellis, et al. The defendants, who were homicide detectives investigating a firebombing, were alleged to have beaten and threatened the victims in an effort to obtain evidence. The jury failed to reach a verdict on two misdemeanor counts charging several officers with violating 18 U.S.C. §242. The jury acquitted two officers on a fourth count charging a §242 violation. Sentencing is scheduled for April 21, 1978.

Attorney: Daniel Rinzel (Civil Rights Division)  
FTS 739-3204

34 (3)

OFFICE OF LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS  
Assistant Attorney General Patricia M. Wald

SELECTED CONGRESSIONAL AND LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES

MARCH 7 - APRIL 4, 1978

Attorneys' Fees. On March 13, DAAG Paul Nejelski of the Office for Improvements in the Administration of Justice testified before the Senate Judiciary Subcommittee on Improvements in Judicial Machinery in opposition to S. 2354. This bill, which was introduced by Senator Domenici and has 25 co-sponsors, would mandate the payment by the United States of attorneys' fees in a vast number of civil cases. OIAJ estimated the bill's cost at \$500 million or more per year. We are working with the congressional staff members and are currently drafting a substitute, which would limit Government liability for attorneys' fees to cases in which the Government acts unreasonably.

Diversity of Citizenship Jurisdiction. On March 17, AAG Daniel Meador testified before the Senate Judiciary Subcommittee on Improvements in Judicial Machinery in support of S. 2094, the Department's diversity bill. Mr. Meador also testified that although we continue to support our bill, we also have no problem supporting H.R. 9622, the House-passed bill totally abolishing diversity of citizenship jurisdiction between citizens of different states. We similarly support the abolition of the jurisdiction amount requirement in federal question cases, as provided in H.R. 9622.

Merit Selection of United States Attorneys. On March 13, the Attorney General testified before the House Judiciary Subcommittee on Courts, Civil Liberties and the Administration of Justice on merit selection of United States Attorneys and United States Marshals. While the Attorney General took no position on the numerous bills pending before the Congress dealing with this issue, he did state his personal view that these officials should be appointed by, and subject to removal by, the Attorney General.

Undocumented Workers. Hearings on the Administration's proposed Alien Adjustment and Employment Act, S. 2252, have been postponed indefinitely as a result of Senate Judiciary Committee scheduling problems. The continuation of the hearings on the nomination of Mr. Civiletti to be Deputy Attorney General preempted the Attorney General's testimony on S. 2252 which was set for March 16. Other March dates which had been set aside to hear testimony from Administration witnesses on S. 2252 will also have to be rescheduled. Staff

members of the Senate Judiciary Immigration Subcommittee have indicated that it may be difficult to reschedule the hearings anytime in the near future because of the many competing matters to be considered, including the Justice Department authorization hearings. The scheduling problems are further complicated by the limited amount of time available for committee meetings due to Senate consideration of the Panama Canal treaties and later, the energy bill. On the House side, Judiciary Committee Chairman Rodino and Immigration Subcommittee Chairman Eilberg recently reiterated their position that they would not consider the House bill which contains the Administration's proposals, H.R. 9531, until the Senate acts on S. 2252. They have taken this position because the Senate failed on two previous occasions to act on comprehensive House-passed bills dealing with undocumented workers. Mr. Eilberg spoke in terms of moving on the House bill after Senate passage of S. 2252. Chairman Rodino appeared to be a bit more flexible in that regard. In any case, the recent delays in Senate Judiciary Committee consideration of S. 2252 are clearly a set back.

Judicial Tenure. Full Senate Judiciary Committee consideration of the proposed Judicial Tenure Act, S. 1423 will probably not take place soon due to the crowded schedule of the committee and the Senate itself. Although the Judicial Conference has endorsed S. 1423 in principle, it plans to make recommendations on the bill to the Judiciary Committee by May 1.

Institutionalized Persons. On March 7 the House Judiciary Committee unanimously reported to the full House H.R. 9400, the institutionalized persons bill. The Committee adopted an amendment limiting the bill to equitable relief and rejected amendments to exclude prison coverage and to limit our right to sue to the vindication of constitutional rights. An additional amendment, offered by Congressman Butler to impose a congressional veto over regulations promulgated by the Attorney General concerning administrative procedures for prisoners, was defeated twice on tie votes; an acceptable "wait-and-see" provision was then adopted. In the Senate, the companion bill, S. 1382, is ready for full Committee consideration.

Cigarette Bootlegging. On March 8 Deputy Assistant Attorney General John C. Keeney testified before the House Judiciary Subcommittee on Crime with regard to H.R. 8853 and H.R. 10066, bills dealing with cigarette smuggling, or over-the-road "bootlegging" of non-tax-paid cigarettes. Mr. Keeney presented the recently formulated Administration position on the proper Federal role in seeking a solution to this growing problem.

That position was essentially as follows: (1) we would agree to support provisions in both H.R. 8853 and H.R. 10066 which would make cigarette bootlegging a Federal crime only if the bills themselves and the legislative history clearly indicated that the Federal law enforcement role would be limited to cases involving large scale cigarette smugglers with links to organized crime; and (2) we agreed that the most effective measure in dealing with the problem of cigarette bootlegging would be legislation, such as H.R. 10066, equalizing the cigarette tax among our various states; however, we deferred to the judgment of the Congress on this type of measure because of the coercive effect of such legislation and its inherent limitations on the power of the states to levy taxes. Subcommittee Chairman John Conyers clearly favored the tax equalization approach to the problem, as opposed to the Federal law enforcement approach. Mr. Keeney, and Edgar Best of the FBI indicated that we view the legislation which would make cigarette bootlegging a Federal crime as another potential tool in combatting organized crime, and not as a panacea for the entire problem. Moreover, Mr. Keeney and Congressman Conyers agreed that any Federal presence in this area of law enforcement should not be viewed as a potential substitute for vigorous state law enforcement efforts.

Tribal-State Compact Act. On March 10 DAAG Sanford Sagalkin of the Land and Natural Resources Division testified before the Senate Select Committee on Indian Affairs on S. 2502, a bill to provide a means for Indian tribes and states to enter into agreements on matters involving jurisdictional issues. Our testimony suggested that we need further time to study the issue but pointed out certain technical defects which our initial consideration had disclosed.

Authorization hearings. The schedule is complete for Department Authorization hearings in the House Judiciary -- starting with the Attorney General and others, and ending with the FBI on March 22. In the Senate Judiciary Committee the Attorney General opens the hearings on March 22 and further hearing dates are tentatively April 4, 5, 6, 11, 12, 13, 18 and 19. The witness line up has tentatively been worked out as follows: April 4-Immigration and Naturalization Service and Land and Natural Resources Division, April 5- Antitrust Division, April 6-Drug Enforcement Administration, April 11-Civil Rights Division, April 12-Criminal Division, April 13-FBI, April 18-LEAA, and April 19-Tax Division and Civil Division.

Pretrial Diversion. Senator DeConcini's staff indicated that his amended pretrial diversion bill will probably go before the full Senate Judiciary Committee in early April.

Department Authorization Hearings. On March 22 the Department's scheduled Authorization hearings concluded in the House Judiciary Committee with the appearance of the Director of FBI. On the same day the series of hearings commenced in the Senate Judiciary Committee with the appearance of the Attorney General. The House Judiciary Committee has scheduled an executive session for April 6 to receive classified data from the FBI and has tentatively set aside April 7 to hear any public witnesses on the authorization subject. There are indications that the House Judiciary Committee will move quickly to markup a Department Authorization bill. One amendment which may be offered is a requirement for inclusion in the Department Correction Program of a Federal Metropolitan Correctional Center for Los Angeles.

Arbitration. The Senate Judiciary Subcommittee on Improvements in Judicial Machinery has scheduled a hearing for April 14 on S. 2253, our bill to provide for arbitration of certain types of cases in federal courts. The Attorney General is expected to testify in support of our proposal.

Financial Privacy. The Senate Banking Housing and Urban Affairs Subcommittee on Financial Institutions has invited us to testify at a hearing on financial privacy on April 20. The Department and Administration position on this subject is still in the process of formulation.

Speedy Trial Act. The Senate Judiciary Subcommittee on the Constitution has tentatively scheduled an oversight hearing on the Speedy Trial Act for April 11.

FBI Charter. Both the Attorney General and the Director of the FBI are expected to testify before the Senate Judiciary Committee late in April on the subject of a charter for the FBI.

Postal Service Act. Having completed two hours of general floor debate on H.R. 7700, the "Postal Service Act", the bill was opened for amendment. Chairman Hanley offered a substitute bill for the reported bill, the substitute containing altered provisions reflecting the agreement the proponents made with the Administration. The votes on amendments and on the bill have been postponed until after the Easter recess. We expect that Congressman Derwinski will introduce an amendment which we favor that would clarify the litigation authority of the Attorney General. Chairman Rodino will likely speak in support of the amendment.

International Drug Trafficking. On March 22 Peter B. Bensinger, Administrator of the Drug Enforcement Administration, testified before a joint hearing of the House International Relations Subcommittee on Asian and Pacific Affairs and the Subcommittee on Inter-American Affairs, concerning international drug trafficking. Testifying with Mr. Bensinger was Mathea Falco, Senior Advisor to the Secretary of State for International Narcotics Matters. The two subcommittees were focusing on the appropriations authorization for our overseas drug eradication and interdiction programs. In this connection, Congressman Benjamin Gilman (R., N.Y.) expressed concern regarding the effectiveness of our oversight of the U.S. financed multimillion dollar opium poppy field eradication program in Mexico, in view of the Mexican government's recent refusal to allow DEA agents to systematically check the results of helicopter poppy field spraying operations. Mr. Bensinger and Miss Falco indicated that they were in the process of working out an agreement with the Mexican government whereby non-law enforcement U.S. personnel would be allowed to accompany Mexican helicopter pilots on spraying operations and subsequent flights to check results. Congressman Lester L. Wolff (D., N.Y.), who chairs the Subcommittee on Asian and Pacific Affairs and the Select Committee on Narcotics Abuse and Control, indicated that he would oppose any continued funding of helicopters and fixed wing aircraft for the Burmese government, so long as Burmese officials continued to refuse to allow DEA agents to monitor the use of the U.S. funded equipment in anti-drug operations.

Undocumented Aliens. In discussions with INS representatives, Senator Eastland indicated the need for an effective temporary alien workers program to meet the labor needs of U.S. agriculture. This was the issue that stalled House-passed alien legislation in prior Congresses. Senator Eastland made no commitment on the rescheduling of hearings on the Administration's proposed Alien Adjustment and Employment Act, S. 2252.

Civiletti Nomination. The Senate Judiciary Committee held executive sessions during the week of March 20 to vote on the nomination of Benjamin R. Civiletti to become Deputy Attorney General. Since a quorum was not attained, no action was taken and there will be no further action until after the Easter recess.

CONFIRMATIONS:

On March 14, 1978, the Senate confirmed the following nominations:

James R. Williams, to be U.S. Attorney for the Northern District of Ohio.

James C. Cissell, to be U.S. Attorney for the Southern District of Ohio.

NOMINATIONS:

On March 22, 1978, the Senate received the following nominations:

Daniel M. Friedman, of the District of Columbia, to be Chief Judge of the U.S. Court of Claims.

Harold H. Greene, to be U.S. District Judge for the District of Columbia.

Gustave Diamond, to be U.S. District Judge for the Western District of Pennsylvania.

Donald E. Ziegler, to be U.S. District Judge for the Western District of Pennsylvania.

## FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 11(e)(6). Pleas. Plea Agreement Procedure. Inadmissibility of Pleas, Offers of Pleas, and Related Statements.

The defendant was convicted of conspiracy and the substantive count of aiding and abetting the interstate transportation of forged securities. On appeal the defendant alleged that he was improperly cross-examined by the Government concerning a counter-offer he had made to the Government during plea bargain discussions. He claimed that according to Rule 11(e)(6), statements made in connection with plea negotiations are completely inadmissible except when used in a perjury prosecution. The Fifth Circuit held that there was no reversible error since the defendant had initiated testimony about plea bargain negotiations during his own direct examination. Defendant had been asked by his own counsel whether the Government had offered him a deal, to which he responded; Yes, he was offered but refused the deal because he was innocent. The Circuit Court found that this line of questioning on direct "invited error" and as a result the government should be permitted to inquire about counter-offers made by the defendant.

(Affirmed.)

United States v. Robert Alonzo Doran, 564 F.2d 1176,  
(5th Cir. December 21, 1977)

42 Ph. (41)

## FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 24(c). Trial Jurors. Alternate Jurors.

The Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit in a divided opinion reversed defendant's narcotics conviction. The Court found that the trial court's decision over defense objections to replace an original juror with his alternate was so improper as to constitute reversible error. On the third day of trial, one of the jurors telephoned the clerk of the court and stated he had decided to return to his job rather than attend the trial. Without conducting a hearing or making any effort to secure the absent juror's presence at trial, the district court substituted an alternate juror.

The Circuit Court stressed that jurors cannot be thought of as "fungible" since they are individually approved by counsel. Reasonable efforts, according to the Court, must be made before finding, as is required by Rule 24(c), that a juror is unable or disqualified to perform his duties. Defense counsel's strenuous objections both at trial and on appeal were based in part on the fact that since the defendant was Latin American, the original black juror might be more sympathetic than the alternate white juror.

(Reversed.)

United States v. Mary Rangel Rodriguez, 564 F.2d 1189,  
(5th Cir., December 22, 1977)

## FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 40. Commitment to Another  
District. Removal.

Defendant was indicted in the District of Kansas for violation of 18 U.S.C. 1919. After his arrest in Chicago, he was brought before a United States Magistrate, for a removal hearing pursuant to Rule 40. In that hearing, defendant requested that removal be denied because of his allegations that the information filed in Kansas failed to state an offense. The Magistrate denied his motion and executed an order providing his return to the District of Kansas. The defendant then appealed to the District Court for review of that order.

The District Court held it lacked jurisdiction to review the Magistrate's decision. The Court felt "it would be a direct contradiction of Congressional intent" not to find a magistrate's disposition of removal questions final. The court reasoned that the enactment of 28 U.S.C. 636(h) of the Magistrates Act and the 1972 amendments to Rule 40, both of which authorized the adoption of local rules permitting magistrates to preside over removal hearings, indicated a Congressional desire that part of the workload burdening district judges be shifted to magistrates. Since the Northern District of Illinois adopted such a rule and as a general proposition removal orders are not appealable to the Circuit Courts, the District Court concluded that the Magistrate's removal order must be final.

United States v. Steve Ranier Canada, 440 F. Supp. 22,  
(N.D. Ill., Nov. 9, 1977)

440 F. Supp. 22

## FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 11. Pleas.Rule 11(c). Pleas. Advice to Defendant.

The Fifth Circuit reversed defendants' convictions for unlawfully transporting aliens into the United States. The court found that the trial judge did not conform with the requirements of Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure since he failed to personally inform the defendants of the various rights and privileges they possessed. The trial judge had allowed an Assistant United States Attorney to, in the courts presence, give all information to the defendants as to the nature of the charges against them and the actual and potential consequences of their guilty pleas. The court inquired as to the defendant's understanding of the statements made to them by the AUSA, but this was not sufficient. The Fifth Circuit reasoned that its very strict application of the "personal address" requirement of Rule 11 was necessary because of the subtle coercion present if the statements and explanations are given by the prosecutor.

(Reversed and remanded.)

United States v. Jerry Lee Hart and Prentice Ray Hart,  
566 F.2d 977 (5th Cir., January 27, 1978)

APRIL 14, 1978

## FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 11(c). Pleas. Advice to Defendant.

See Rule 11 this issue of the Bulletin for syllabus.

United States v. Jerry Lee Hart and Prentice Ray Hart,  
566 F.2d 977 (5th Cir., January 27, 1978)

(48)  
SOWISK

## FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 30. Instructions.

See Rule 404(b) this issue of the Bulletin for syllabus.

United States v. Willie Thomas Reese, \_\_\_\_\_ F.2d \_\_\_\_\_,  
No. 77-5189 (6th Cir., December 30, 1977)

## FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 46. Release from Custody.

Rule 54(b)(5). Application and Exception.  
Proceedings. Other Proceedings.

A professional bondsman, W.R. Kenney, appealed from the denial of his motion for an extension of time to file a notice of appeal from a bond forfeiture judgment. The bondsman contended that surety forfeiture was a civil type proceeding and thus the applicable appeal period was 60 days plus an additional 30 days on the basis of his showing of excusable neglect. His notice of appeal was filed 61 days after judgment.

The Tenth Circuit held the rules governing bond forfeiture are set by the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and therefore the district court had properly refrained from using a time period other than the ten day period with a possible 30 additional days established by Rule 4(b) of the Federal Rules of Appellate Procedure for criminal appeals. The court's decision was based on the fact that even though bond forfeiture is considered civil in nature, provisions for forfeiture are contained in Rule 46 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and are not specifically excepted under Rule 54(b)(5) from the application of the criminal rules, as are civil type proceedings for forfeiture of property and the collection of fines and penalties. Therefore, the court concluded, that since the statute explicitly specifies some exceptions to the general rule, other possible exceptions such as for bond forfeiture are excluded; expressio unius est exclusio alterius.

(Affirmed.)

United States v. Jones, Peter Calvin and W.R. Kenney,  
567 F.2d 965, (10th Cir., December 29, 1977)

1000 (23)

## FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 52(b). Harmless Error and Plain Error. Plain Error.

See Rule 404(b) this issue of the Bulletin for syllabus.

United States v. Willie Thomas Reese, \_\_\_ F.2d \_\_\_,  
No. 77-5189 (6th Cir., December 30, 1977)

## FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 54(b)(5). Application and Exception.  
Proceedings. Other Proceedings.

See Rule 46 this issue of the Bulletin for syllabus.

United States v. Jones, Peter Calvin and W.R. Kenney,  
567 F.2d 965, (10th Cir., December 29, 1977)

## FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE

Rule 404(b). Character Evidence Not Admissible to Prove Conduct; Exceptions; Other Crimes. Other Crimes, Wrongs, or Acts.

Defendant appealed his bank robbery conviction contending inter alia that the district court erred in admitting testimony under Rule 404(b) concerning a house burglary for which the defendant was not indicted, and which occurred a year before the bank robbery. The Court of Appeals held that Rule 404(b) "unequivocally and very broadly" allows admissibility of prior crimes for purposes including the establishment of identity. The admitted testimony indicated that weapons found at the site of the getaway car were the same weapons that the defendant had stolen in the earlier house burglary. Thus, the court felt, the testimony was not admitted to establish that he acted in conformity with any "bad character" but for independent reasons; that his possession of weapons later used in the bank robbery, indicated his complicity in that crime.

(Affirmed.)

United States v. Sam Thomas Waldron, \_\_\_\_\_ F.2d \_\_\_\_\_,  
No. 77-1092 (10th Cir. December 29, 1977)

## FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE

Rule 803(5). Hearsay Exceptions; Availability  
of Declarant Immaterial. Recorded  
Recollection.

The defendant, Glen Williams, was convicted of cashing government checks with forged endorsements. At trial, the defendant's case principally rested on whether the Government had succeeded in establishing the "intent" necessary for violation of 18 U.S.C. §495. The major issue on appeal concerned the admissibility of a signed statement given by a friend of the defendant to a Secret Service agent. The statement added important incriminating evidence to what the witness was willing or able to testify to at trial.

The District Court admitted the written statement, despite defense objections, under the hearsay exception contained in Rule 803(5). The defendant claimed that the witness had a clear recollection of the events when testifying at trial and therefore his prior statement must have been inaccurate and wasn't needed. The Court of Appeals held the District Court made a proper discretionary decision after establishing an adequate foundation for admission; the witness had testified that before signing the written statement he had read and understood it, and at trial judging by his demeanor and testimony, the witness seemed purposely to fail to recollect only the most damaging parts of his prior statement.

The Court of Appeals also rejected defendant's claim that Rule 803(5) requires that a statement which is to be read into evidence actually be written by the witness. In view of clear legislative intent, the Court found the requirement of 803(5), that the statement be made "or adopted by the witness when the matter was fresh in his mind," satisfied. Here the witness indicated his approval by signing the statement prepared from his oral accounts. These oral accounts and the signed statement took place approximately six months after the incident spoken of.

(Affirmed.)

United States v. Glen Williams, \_\_\_ F.2d \_\_\_, No. 77-5103,  
(6th Cir., February 22, 1978)

①  
62811

## FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE

- Rule 404(b). Character Evidence Not Admissible to Prove Conduct; Exceptions; Other Crimes.
- Rule 803(6). Hearsay Exceptions; Availability of Declarant Immaterial. Records or Regularly Conducted Activities.
- Rule 30. Instructions.
- Rule 52(b). Harmless Error and Plain Error. Plain Error.

Defendant was convicted of receiving and concealing stolen property in violation of 18 U.S.C. 2315. On appeal, he alleged inter alia that the trial court erred in allowing rebuttal testimony by two Government witnesses and the cross examination of the defendant about improper and illegal acts for which the defendant was never indicted. The two witnesses testified that in 1971, 1972 and 1973 they stole property at the defendant's request. The defendant did not object to their testimony at trial.

The Court of Appeals affirmed the conviction, finding the testimony admissible under Rule 404(b), not as an attack on the defendant's credibility but as competent evidence indicating motive, criminal intent and knowledge by the defendant of the illegal nature of the purchased goods. On its own initiative the court indicated that certain parts of the jury instructions, concerning the use of rebuttal testimony, were incorrect statements of the law. The trial judge had stated that all rebuttal evidence presented by the United States relates solely and only to the issue of good character. However, Rule 404(b) permits rebuttal testimony to show motive, intent, and knowledge as well as opportunity, preparation, plan, identity or absence of mistake or accident. This was held not to be reversible error since defense counsel failed to object and therefore under Rule 30 was barred from assigning error on appeal, and because the error was not serious enough to be "plain error" under Rule 52(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure.

The Court also rejected defendant's claim that the district court erred in allowing a witness, who was a hospital medical records administrator, to testify about records not kept under her control. These records were newspaper articles kept by the Public Relations Department of the hospital and showed visiting hours for patients of the hospital. The Government presented these records to prove that defendant had not visited his wife, a patient at the hospital, when he testified he had. According to Rule 803(6), records of regularly conducted activity can be admitted by the testimony of "the custodian or other qualified

witness." The court found the records administrator to be a qualified witness, and that it wasn't necessary for her to have personal knowledge of the particular evidence contained in the record, since the item was made "from information transmitted by, a person with knowledge." It did not matter that this information went from the hospital to a newspaper and back to the hospital.

(Affirmed.)

United States v. Willie Thomas Reese, \_\_\_ F.2d \_\_\_,  
No. 77-5189 (6th Cir., December 30, 1977)

(4)

## FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE

Rule 801(d)(2)(E). Definitions. Statements Which are Not Hearsay. Admission by Party-Opponent. Statement by a Coconspirator.

Defendant appealed his conviction for conspiracy and possession of marijuana with intent to distribute, claiming in part that extrajudicial statements made by his alleged coconspirators were improperly admitted at trial. The defendant contended that there was insufficient independent evidence of his role in the conspiracy and even if in retrospect there was enough corroboration it was error for the district court to admit these statements before the Government had offered the jury independent evidence of his involvement.

The Court of Appeals rejected defendant's claims and found the government had met its burden to present sufficient independent evidence of the conspiracy to "make out a prima facie case against the defendant." The extrajudicial statements were therefore admissible under Rule 801(d)(2)(E) as statements of coconspirators. At trial the Government presented strong independent evidence of the defendant's involvement including his arrest near an airplane loaded with marijuana, his fingerprints on maps found within the plane, and incriminating testimony by a government informer.

In rejecting defendant's argument of improper evidential presentation at trial the court held that a trial judge has discretion over the order of proof and could allow the government to present its "hearsay" evidence first, provided that it was accompanied by a warning to the jury to disregard the evidence if the government fails to present sufficient independent evidence. See United States v. Apollo, 476 F.2d 156 (5th Cir., 1973).

(Affirmed.)

United States v. David B. Hanson, \_\_\_\_\_ F.2d \_\_\_\_\_,  
No. 77-5082 (5th Cir., March 10, 1978)

6078-100

## FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE

Rule 803(6). Hearsay Exceptions; Availability of Declarant Immaterial. Records or Regularly Conducted Activities.

See Rule 404(b) this issue of the Bulletin for syllabus.

United States v. Willie Thomas Reese, \_\_\_\_\_ F.2d \_\_\_\_\_,  
No. 77-5189 (6th Cir., December 30, 1977)

(6)  
nd